
AGENDA 
Economic Development Authority 

Regular Meeting 

6/3/2025 – 6:00 pm 

 City Hall 

1. Call to Order

2. Approval of Agenda

3. Approval of Minutes – May 06, 2025

4. Business

a. Discussion regarding Revolving Loan Fund Guidelines and strategies.
Possible approval of RLF Guidelines and recommendation to the City Council.

b. Update and Discussion regarding a Revolving Loan Fund Application (Cash and Eddie’s)
and recommendation to the City Council.

c. Discussion regarding Business Subsidy Policy adoption and Possible recommendation
to the City Council.

d. Review of EDA survey findings

5. Staff Report

6. Next Meeting – July 01, 2025 at 6:00 p.m.

7. Adjournment

Members:  Lynn Kissock, Kris Logas, Scott Chantland, Lori Hausken, and Wayne Paumen 

1



  

Maple Lake Economic Development Authority Minutes – May 06, 2025 
Page 1 of 3 

 

CITY OF MAPLE LAKE 
WRIGHT COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

MINUTES OF MAPLE LAKE  
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MEETING  

MAY 06, 2025 - 6:00 P.M. 
 

1. Call to Order - The meeting of the City of Maple Lake Economic Development Authority 
was called to order by Mayor Kissock at 7:51p.m. on Tuesday, May 06, 2025. 

 
Roll Call – Mayor Lynn Kissock, Councilors Kris Logas, Scott Chantland, Lori Hausken 
and Wayne Paumen were present. 

City Staff and Consultants Present:  Scott Hildebrand, City Administrator; Kirstin 
Chatfield, EDA Consultant; and Andrew Johnson (Future) Public Works Director. 

2. Approval of Agenda - Motion by Councilor Chantland and seconded by Councilor 
Logas to approve the agenda as presented.  Motion passed unanimously by voice vote. 
 

3. Business  
 

a. Chatfield led a discussion regarding the MLEDA By-Laws, which are the “here and 

now.”  She specified the Enabling Resolution may need to be amended at some 

point to keep the goal of transitioning for more public positions at some point. It was 

noted the Secretary, City Administrator and Treasurer, City Finance Officer are non-

voting members.  Motion by Councilor Chantland and seconded by Councilor 

Hausken to adopt the MLEDA By-Laws as presented.  Motion passed unanimously 

by voice vote. 

 

b. Chatfield discussed a proposed Resolution adopting the MLEDA By-Laws and 

appointing officers.  It was noted the Secretary shall be the City Administrator and 

the Treasurer shall be the City Finance Officer.  After discussion, Mayor Kissock was 

named the President, Councilor Scott Chantland the Vice President, and Councilor 

Kris Logas the Assistant Treasurer.  Motion by Councilor Chantland and seconded 

by Councilor Logas to adopt MLEDA Resolution 2025-01 adopting the MLEDA By-

Laws and appointing officers.  Motion passed unanimously by voice vote. 

 

There was discussion regarding voting conflicts and the plan to transition to 

members of the public. 

 

c. Chatfield and Hildebrand discussed options / concerns regarding the Revolving Loan 

Fund.  There are currently 2 pots, with $138,000 in the City portion.  Hildebrand 

provided the update that this number could increase in the positive, as the City’s 

“Unassigned Fund Balance” is evaluated for transparency regarding fund transfers 

which he did not believe occurred.  Chatfield advised the MN DEED had been  

  

2



  

Maple Lake Economic Development Authority Minutes – May 06, 2025 
Page 2 of 3 

 

 

contacted regarding the possibility of other State or Federal funds which the City may 

have received, which have other restrictions.  It was confirmed funds for project Tech 

were received in 1997.  There was roughly $202,000 confirmed in 2020.  We know 

where the City funds are located, but Hildebrand is working with the auditor to 

identify the location of the Federal funds, which has other restrictions such as Davis-

Bacon, MN DEED review, LMI bids, etc. 

Chatfield noted that 2 fund guidelines were prepared, to address each fund, but 

noted that it does provide the City flexibility to address needs and be constructive 

with helping an applicant’s needs.  Each fund will be repaid with interest to that fund.  

There is no ability to move away from those restrictions. 

Hildebrand noted there are currently 2 funds outstanding.  King’s is almost paid off, 

and a 2nd is being discussed with the auditor and attorney to send to collections.  

Changes with Staff and CoVid delays created confusion with their outstanding 

amount. 

Kissock noted in the past, these loans were meant to provide GAP funding, but the 

City controls the interest rates.  The City required business plans and looked in depth 

into the application and other financing options.  The Council discussed evaluating 

each application on a case-by-case basis. 

Hildebrand did confirm the application can be placed online and advertised. 

Chatfield then inquired about loans for Working Capital for inventory or payroll, as 

that is a current application.  One concern is lack of collateral, but it is an eligible 

activity.  It was agreed these requests will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis. 

Additionally, Chatfield confirmed a recommendation to approve a loan fund would 

then need to be confirmed by the Council.  Hildebrand noted that changes in 

circumstances could occur between the EDA and Council review.  

It was noted the City will send monthly statements for an amortization schedule.  In 

the past, there was no clear enforcement to confirm for funds will be released, then 

repaid to the City. A Section 9 will be added. 

Chatfield will make the requested changes and clarifications to each application and 

guidelines.  They will be formally approved at a later date. 

d. Hildebrand advised the application will be tabled for a later date.  A high-level 

discussion of an application was discussed, as Staff was more trying to learn the 

EDA’s comfort level.  Clear guidelines can be established, but even the most 

qualified does not ensure a good loan. 

Kissock noted the EDA is much more than loans and encourage Chatfield to educate 

the EDA on other opportunities and priorities. 

Hildebrand discussed the high level evaluation, thought process and comfort level of 

the requested loan, but noted the overall goal is to help the community. 

3



  

Maple Lake Economic Development Authority Minutes – May 06, 2025 
Page 3 of 3 

 

4. Staff Report – Nothing additional was added, but Hildebrand discussed the idea for 
holding the EDA meeting prior to the Council work session on the first Tuesday of each 
meeting.  All of these meetings are open and voice recorded.  A summary of the 
information discussed will be provided at the Council meeting. 
 

5. Next Meeting - The next meeting was scheduled for June 03, 2025, at 6:00 p.m. 
 

6. Adjournment - Motion made by Councilor Hausken, seconded by Councilor Chantland to 
adjourn the meeting.  Motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  Meeting adjourned at 
8:39 p.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
Scott W. Hildebrand 
City Administrator 
 
 
Approved:  ________________________ 
  Lynn Kissock, President 

4



CITY OF MAPLE LAKE 

REVOLVING LOAN FUND PROGRAM POLICIES & PROCEDURES 

(CITY FUNDS) 

1. Background 

The City of Maple Lake's Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) is capitalized as a result of 
contributions made by the City of Maple Lake from its General Fund to a designated 
Revolving Loan Fund for economic development purposes. 

 
Projects funded by the RLF will need to demonstrate financial gap, credit worthiness as 
well as create or retain jobs. Verification will be needed to demonstrate compliance with 
these conditions. 

 
The City of Maple Lake's Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) was designed to reduce political 
influences on the loan selection process; simplify the RLF loan terms and conditions as 
well as the approval process; and allow for flexibility in establishing loan terms and 
conditions to tailor loans to the needs of individual firms. 

To facilitate the reuse of the RLF funds, the city may use outside consultants to analyze 

applicants and make recommendations to the City Council on proposed Projects. 

2. Eligible Activities 

The following types of activities are eligible for use of RLF funds: 

a) Property acquisition 

b) Site Improvements 

c) Building construction 

d) Building renovation 

e) Purchase and repair of machinery and equipment 

f) Working Capital 

g) Professional fees 

h) Infrastructure improvements necessary to support new or expanding 
businesses. 

 
3. Types of Financial Assistance 

The following are examples of financial assistance that can be given to encourage 
economic development: 

a) Make a companion or second loan 

5



b) Give direct loans at favorable interest rates and terms. 

4. Eligible Businesses 

a) New and expanding existing commercial and industrial businesses. 

5. Loan Evaluation Criteria 

a) Applicant’s equity position must be at least 10 percent after the Project is 
completed. 

b) Loans will be in a junior collateral position to the major source of project 
financing, unless RLF proceeds are the primary source of funds. 

c) Term of the loan should coincide with the term of the private portion of 
the loan but may be shorter or longer depending on the circumstances. 

d) The interest rate of the direct RLF loan will be set according to the needs 
of each individual project. 

e) The applicant must meet standard underwriting criteria 

f) Provisions of Loan Evaluation Criteria Numbers a - e may be waived for 
applicants with projects under $10,000.00. 

6. Application Process 

a) Pickup Application at City Hall. 

b) Review Application Packet. If assistance is needed, contact the 
City Administrator for the City of Maple Lake. 

c) Return application materials in a sealed envelope marked "Maple Lake 
RLF Application” to Maple Lake City Hall with a $250 non-refundable loan 
processing fee. If the loan is approved, this loan processing fee can be 
added to the loan amount. 

7. Review Process 

a) City staff and outside consultants, as necessary, will review the 
submitted application materials and contact applicant for additional 
materials, if necessary. 

b) An underwriting review meeting is conducted. 

c) Appropriate modifications are made to the application materials. 

d) The EDA reviews the application and makes a recommendation to the 
City Council 

e) The City Council reviews the EDA recommendation and makes a decision 
on the application request. 

f) The applicant is notified of the City Council action. 

8. Release of Funds 

a) Funds will be disbursed by the City to the applicant. 

b) All funds must be expended within 90 days of City Council approval. 
Modifications to the 90 day time period may be made. 6



 
9. Repayment of Funds 

a) The applicant will receive from the City a monthly invoice for payment, according to 

the amortization schedule. 

b) Interest will be calculated on the funds disbursed for the loan. 

10. Special Provisions 

a) No applicant may be denied a loan on the basis of race, color, national origin, 
religion, age, handicap or sex. All advertisement and promotion of this program 
will emphasize this civil rights provision and the targeting criteria established to 
promote affirmative actions 

b) Applicants will be required to comply with all federal, state and loca1laws and 
regulations concerning air and water quality. All required reviews will be 
completed and permits issued prior to funding. 

c) Business Subsidy Law (MS 116J.993-116J.995). Any state or local government 
agency or public entity that provides financial assistance to a business must 
comply with this statute. 

 

7



CITY OF MAPLE LAKE 

REVOLVING LOAN FUND PROGRAM POLICIES & PROCEDURES 

(MINNESOTA INVESTMENT FUND) 

1. Background 

The City of Maple Lake's Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) is capitalized as a result of recycled 
loan payments from businesses participating in the State of Minnesota Department of 
Employment and Economic Development (DEED) Minnesota Investment Fund (MIF) 
program. The MIF program funds were awarded to the City of Maple Lake to be loaned 
to a participating business based on financial gap, credit worthiness and job creation for 
low and moderate income persons. The City of Maple Lake's Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) 
will operate under these same original award considerations. 

 
Projects funded by the RLF will need to demonstrate financial gap, credit worthiness as 
well as create or retain jobs that are taken by or available to low and moderate income 
persons. Verification will be needed to demonstrate compliance with these conditions. 

 
The City of Maple Lake's Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) was designed to reduce political 
influences on the loan selection process; simplify the RLF loan terms and conditions as 
well as the approval process; and allow for flexibility in establishing loan terms and 
conditions to tailor loans to the needs of individual firms. 

To facilitate the reuse of the RLF funds, the city may use outside consultants to analyze 
applicants and make recommendations to the City Council on proposed Projects. 

2. Eligible Activities 

The following types of activities are eligible for use of RLF funds: 

a) Property acquisition 

b) Site Improvements 

c) Building construction 

d) Building renovation 

e) Purchase and repair of machinery and equipment 

f) Working Capital 

g) Professional fees 

h) Infrastructure improvements necessary to support new or expanding 
businesses. 

 
3. Types of Financial Assistance 

The following are examples of financial assistance that can be given to encourage 
economic development: 

a) Make a companion or second loan 

8



b) Give direct loans at favorable interest rates and terms. 

4. Eligible Businesses 

a) New and expanding existing commercial and industrial businesses. 

5. Loan Evaluation Criteria 

a) Applicant’s equity position must be at least 10 percent after the Project is 
completed. 

b) Loans will be in a junior collateral position to the major source of project 
financing, unless RLF proceeds are the primary source of funds. 

c) Term of the loan should coincide with the term of the private portion of 
the loan but may be shorter or longer depending on the circumstances. 

d) The interest rate of the direct RLF loan will be set according to the needs 
of each individual project. 

e) The applicant must meet standard underwriting criteria 

f) Provisions of Loan Evaluation Criteria Numbers a - e may be waived for 
applicants with projects under $10,000.00. 

6. Application Process 

a) Pickup Application at City Hall. 

b) Review Application Packet. If assistance is needed, contact the 
City Administrator for the City of Maple Lake. 

c) Return application materials in a sealed envelope marked "Maple Lake 
RLF Application” to Maple Lake City Hall with a $250 non-refundable loan 
processing fee. If the loan is approved, this loan processing fee can be 
added to the loan amount. 

7. Review Process 

a) City staff and outside consultants, as necessary, will review the 
submitted application materials and contact applicant for additional 
materials, if necessary. 

b) An underwriting review meeting is conducted. 

c) Appropriate modifications are made to the application materials. 

d) The EDA reviews the application and makes a recommendation to the 
City Council 

e) The City Council reviews the EDA recommendation and makes a decision 
on the application request. 

f) The applicant is notified of the City Council action. 

8. Release of Funds 

a) Funds will be disbursed by the City to the applicant. 

b) All funds must be expended within 90 days of City Council approval. 
Modifications to the 90 day time period may be made. 9



 
9. Repayment of Funds 

a) The applicant will receive from the City a monthly invoice for payment, according to 

the amortization schedule. 

b) Interest will be calculated on the funds disbursed for the loan. 

 
10. Special Provisions 

a) At least 51 % of all the jobs created through the use of RLF proceeds will 
result in the hiring or be made available to low and moderate income 
individuals pursuant to 24 CFR Part 570.208 (a)(4). The determination of 
income levels will be pursuant to HUD Section Eight guidelines. 

b) Businesses receiving RLF assistance must pay each employee total 
compensation, including benefits not mandated by law, that on an 
annualized basis is equal to at least 110% of the federal poverty level for 
a family of four. The federal poverty level changes annually. 

c) Prior to approval of a loan request the RLF Board will make a determination 
that the proposed loan is deemed necessary or appropriate pursuant to HUD 
guidelines as detailed on the attached Exhibit A. This determination must be 
evidenced through a written analysis that is to accompany any request or 
recommendation for approval by the RLF Board 

d) No applicant may be denied a loan on the basis of race, color, national origin, 
religion, age, handicap or sex. All advertisement and promotion of this 
program will emphasize this civil rights provision and the targeting criteria 
established to promote affirmative action. 

e) All loans for construction must be submitted to the State of Minnesota 
Historic Preservation Office for review and consent. 

f) All loans for construction must meet the requirements of the Davis-Bacon Act 

as amended (40 U.S.C. 27OO-276a.5) 

g) The RLF Board shall not approve loans made for construction in or alteration 
of a wetland or 100 year floodplain as determined by soils mapping, USGS 
studies or other accepted means if adverse effect would be caused by that 
construction. 

The RLF Board shall not approve projects which would result in construction 
of other than underground utilities in the 100 year floodplain as defined by 
FEMA unless all capacity removed from the floodplain is restored by 
excavation or other appropriate means. 

No project shall be approved which results in the alternation of any wetland, 
or in any adverse impact on a wetland, without prior consultation with, and 
consent of the U.S. Department of Interior, Fish and Wildlife Service 

 
When applicable, applicants will be required to purchase flood hazard 
insurance. 

10



h) Applicants will be required to comply with all federal, state and local laws and 
regulations concerning air and water quality. All required reviews will be 
completed and permits issued prior to funding. 

i) The staff of the RLF will review each application for conformance with this 
special provisions section. to conduct its review, the staff will contact local 
(city and county) planning and zoning authorities. Site specific maps and 
regulations of FEMA, USGS, SCS SHPO and other applicable agencies will also 
be consulted. All local, state and federal regulations must be complied with 
prior to granting a loan. 

j) For each loan application, the staff must make a finding of compliance or no 
adverse impact. If there is a finding of non-compliance, a plan for mitigation 
acceptable to the regulatory agency must be filed with the RLF Board. RLF 
staff will monitor compliance with the mitigation plan. 

k) Business Subsidy Law (MS 116J.993-116J.995). Any state or local 
government agency or public entity that provides financial assistance to a 
business must comply with this statute. 

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



 

BUSINESS ASSISTANCE/SUBSIDY POLICY 
CITY OF MAPLE LAKE, MINNESOTA 

 
Section 1:  Purpose 
 
The purpose of this policy is to establish City standards with regard to business assistance.  The 
City supports the concept of public/private partnerships as a means of: encouraging continued 
economic diversity; maintaining a viable tax base; expanding existing business and industry; 
attracting quality and compatible business and industry; enhancing and retaining employment 
opportunities; and, maximizing the return on municipal investments such as infrastructure, 
utilities and services.  The standards herein are required by and in compliance with Minnesota 
Statutes 116J.994, as amended. 
 
Section 2:  Definitions 
 
For the purposes of this policy, terms herein shall have the meanings given to them in 
Minnesota Statutes, Section 116J.994.     
 
Section 3:  Public Purpose Requirements 
 
The City may consider business assistance to support private development in circumstances 
where the proposed project meets a minimum of one of the following goals and where 
applicable, new full-time equivalent positions are paid no less than 110% of the federal poverty 
level for a family of four for the current year as identified by the U.S. Department of Health and 
Human Services. 
 

A. To redevelop blighted or under-utilized areas of the community.   
 
B. To encourage redevelopment in the City’s commercial and industrial areas to stimulate 

high levels of property maintenance and private reinvestment in those areas. 
 
C. In conjunction with another business assistance goal, as provided for in this section to 

increase the tax base (Public Purpose Goals A, B, D, E, F, G, H or I).  Increase of tax 
base alone shall not constitute a public purpose.   

 
D. To retain jobs wherein job loss is specific and demonstrable. 

 
E. To increase the number of jobs and diversity of the employment base. 

 
F. To encourage additional unsubsidized private development in the area. 

 
G. To offset increased costs of redevelopment (i.e. contaminated site clean-up), over and 

above those costs that a developer would normally incur. 
 

H. To facilitate the development process and to achieve development on sites which would 
not be developed without this assistance. 

 
I. To meet other uses of public policy including, but not limited to, promotion of quality 

urban design, quality architectural design, energy conservation, decreasing the capital 
and operating costs of local government, etc. 

27



 

 
   
Section 4:  Assistance Agreement 
 

A. A recipient of a business assistance must enter into an agreement with the grantor of the 
assistance that includes: 
 

1. The amount and type of assistance.  If the type of assistance is tax increment 
financing, the type of district should be specified (e.g. economic development, 
redevelopment, etc.)  

2. A list of financial assistance by all grantors for the project as well as private 
financing and equity contributed to the project. 

3. A statement(s) of public purpose (from Section 3),  
4. A statement explaining why the assistance is needed. 
5. Goals for the assistance, including but not limited to, wage goals for the number 

of full time equivalent jobs created or retained within two years of the benefit 
date, increase in tax base, etc.  

6. A statement as to the recipient’s obligation(s) if the recipient does not fulfill the 
agreement.  At a minimum the agreement must require a recipient failing to meet 
assistance agreement goals to pay back the assistance plus interest to the 
grantor provided that repayment may be prorated to reflect partial fulfillment of 
goals. 

7.  The name and address of the recipient (and parent corporation where 
applicable) and, a description of the financial obligation of the recipient if the 
goals are not met. 

8. A statement as to the proposed project’s compliance with the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan.  

9. A statement as to the recipient’s annual reporting requirements.   
 

 
B. Wage and Job Goals.  The Assistance Agreement shall include goals for the number of 

jobs to be created (including full-time and/or part-time).  If the public purpose identified is 
Section 3 D, the retention of jobs, the number of jobs to be retained must be identified 
and any wage goals for jobs to be enhanced though increased wages should be noted.  
If, after a public hearing, job creation/retention is not defined as a goal, the wage and job 
goals may be set at zero.  Wage and job goals must be met within two years of the 
benefit date. 

 
C. City and/or State Government Agency and recipients must be authorized to execute the 

assistance agreement and the agreement must be executed. 
 
Section 5:  Process 
 

A. Application.  The recipient shall complete an application form, provided by the City, 
specifying the type of assistance or subsidy requested, along with other information 
required by the City. 

 
B. City Staff-Recipient Meeting.   
 

28



 

C. EDA or City Council (depending on the type of assistance) Review and 
Recommendation. Please note, the recommendation may be provided following a 
required public hearing. 
 
 

D. Public Hearing Requirements.  If the amount of the requested local assistance exceeds 
$150,000 the City shall hold a public hearing before granting or denying the request.  If 
the assistance is from a state government agency, a public hearing must be held for 
assistance or subsidies in excess of $500,000.  In addition to these requirements, a 
public hearing may be needed if required by MN Statutes or local ordinances (e.g. tax 
increment financing). 

 
E. Assistance Agreement. The City and the recipient shall enter into a Business Assistance 

Agreement. 
 
Section 6:  Reports   
 

A. Reports by Recipients to the City.  A recipient shall report information regarding goals 
and results for two years after the benefit date or until the goals are met, whichever is 
later.   If goals are not met, the recipient must continue to provide information on the 
assistance until the assistance is repaid.  The information must be filed on forms 
provided by the City no later than March 1st of each year, and within 30 days after the 
deadline for meeting job and wage goals.   If the recipient does not submit its report, the 
City shall mail the recipient a warning within one week of the required filing date.  If 
within 14 days a report is not provided, the recipient shall pay the City a penalty of $100 
for each subsequent day the report is not filed, to a maximum of $1,000. 

 
B. Reports by the City to the State.  The City shall file a report by April 1st of each year with 

the MN Department of Employment and Economic Development, as required by State 
Statute.   

 
 
 
Motion by: Lynn Kissock 
Seconded by: John Northenscold 
Ayes: Deb Geyen, Lynn Kissock, John Northenscold 
Nays: None 
Absent: Todd Jude, Bart Lauer 
 
Approved:  June 7, 2016 

29


	20250603 EDA Agenda.pdf
	3 - 20250506 EDA Minutes
	4a - Maple Lake RLF Program Policies (City Funds)
	4a - Maple Lake RLF Program Policies (MIF)
	4b - Rev Loan App - King 20250410
	4b - RLF King Bus Plan
	4c - Maple Lake Business Subsidy Policy 2016



